





T7:30pm



OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER
301 King St., Suite 3500
Alexandria, VA 22314

JAMES F. PARAJON 703.746.4300
City Manager Fax: 703.838.6343
January 9, 2026
David Kaplan, Chair

Board of Directors
Alexandria Transit Company
3000 Business Center Drive
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Re: ATC Board Of Director Transition
Dear Chairman Kaplan:

Pursuant to Article I, Section I of the Alexandria Transit Company (ATC) Board of
Director By-Laws, composition of the ATC Board requires one member to be the City’s
Chief Financial Officer or designee. This position is currently held by Laura Gates,
Deputy Director of Finance. Effective January 17, 2026, Ms. Gates is stepping down from
her Finance position and is transferring to the Alexandria City Libraries. Her last meeting
as an ATC Board Member will be at your meeting on January 14,

Following that meeting, I am appointing Kevin Greenlief, Director of Finance, as the
City’s representative to occupy Ms. Gates seat on the Board of Directors.

Sincerely,

%/ /%f‘

James F. Parajon
City Manager

cc: Emily A. Baker, Deputy City Manager
Jane Christenson, Deputy City Manager
Josh Baker, General Manager, DASH
Kevin C. Greenlief, Director, Department of Finance

Approved as to Form
Assistant City Attorney
Sarah McElveen
01.02.2026






National Association of City Transportation Officials (NACTO) urban average of 1,320 feet,
contributing to slower travel times and reduced reliability.

The proposed stop rebalancing plan will:
e Improve bus speed and schedule reliability
e Enhance passenger accessibility and comfort
e Support ADA upgrades at key stops
o Better align stop locations with new and emerging development

The proposal includes removal of eight existing stops and addition of five new stops. While some
on-street parking removal is required to support ADA-compliant boarding areas, parking will be
restored at other locations along the corridor. Approval of associated parking modifications is
scheduled for consideration by the Traffic and Parking Board in January.

Solar Lights for Bus Stops

Transportation Planning received a shipment this week of twenty (20) solar lighting units. These
units can be programmed to activate whenever it is dark outside and increase in brightness when a
rider is near a bus stop. Improved lighting at transit stops is a priority of the Bus Stop Program as it
improves visibility, safety, and the bus rider experience. Staff will collaborate with DASH in the
coming weeks to install these solar lights at priority bus stops across Alexandria.

Metroway Expansion

The City has issued a contract to initiate the full-build concept (10 percent) design for the Metroway
expansion that can be constructed within the existing right-of-way. The design will also identify
potential alternatives should additional right-of-way become available through redevelopment or
dedication. Phase Il design, extending from South Glebe Road to Arlington, is scheduled to begin in
January 2026.

West Alexandria Transit Center Design

The project team has completed its review of three design alternatives for the West Alexandria
Transit Center. Staff and community feedback are currently being synthesized to confirm a
preferred alternative. The selected concept will advance to the next phase of design.

West End Transitway Operations Plan

The City Manager has approved Scenario 4A as the staff preferred operating plan for the West End
Transitway (WET). This decision follows a comprehensive operations planning analysis evaluating
service coverage, cost effectiveness, equity impacts, and coordination between DASH and WMATA
services.

Under Scenario 4A:
o WET 1 will provide all-day, high-frequency service operated by DASH
o WET 2 will provide peak-period express service operated by WMATA, utilizing Route A29 via
[-395 to connect Mark Center, Shirlington, and the Pentagon
e DASH Line 35 will be truncated to operate between Van Dorn Metro Station and Southern
Towers



o WMATA Route A27 will be rerouted along North Hampton Drive to preserve coverage
affected by the Line 35 truncation

Key benefits of Scenario 4A include:
e Anoptimized balance of service quality, ridership coverage, and operating cost
e Reduced duplicative service along North Beauregard Street while maintaining strong
corridor coverage
e Improved equity outcomes, with increased people-trips for low-income and minority riders
compared to most other scenarios

Implementation of Scenario 4A will require eight additional buses, funded through existing grants,
and is estimated to increase annual operating costs by approximately $3.8 million (FY25 dollars). A
combination of CMAQ/RSTP grant funding, NVTA 30% funds, and future Commuter Choice
eligibility will help offset operating costs beginning in FY2028.

King Street Bus Stop Seating
Transportation Planning ordered benches and lean rails for bus stops along King Street in Old
Town. The Street and Sewer Maintenance team installed the new seating at twelve (12) bus stops.
The improved amenities provide a critical enhancement to the rider experience along one of the
highest-ridership corridors in Alexandria.
: il :

Regional Transit Funding and NVTC Update

At the January Northern Virginia Transportation Commission (NVTC) meeting, commissioners and
staff discussed the increasingly urgent need for sustainable, long-term regional transit funding.
While recent budgets have stabilized short-term operations, structural funding gaps remain across
bus, rail, and commuter services in Northern Virginia and statewide.

Key themes from the NVTC discussion included:

e Continued momentum around DMV Moves and SJ 28, which together outline a framework
for establishing reliable, dedicated transit revenue sources



o Recognition that transit investment supports regional economic competitiveness,

workforce mobility, and equity outcomes
e Theimportance of aligning state, regional, and local funding strategies to address both

operating and capital needs

NVTC leadership emphasized that upcoming General Assembly sessions will be critical for
advancing legislation to modernize revenue tools and secure dedicated transit funding. Alexandria
staff will continue to coordinate closely with NVTC, regional partners, and legislative delegations to
support these efforts and communicate the City’s priorities related to transit service reliability,

expansion, and long-term sustainability.



1. Welcome

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Alexandria Transit Company was held at 5:30 pm on
Wednesday, December 10, 2025, in the DASH Facility Board Room. A recording of the meeting
was made and is available upon request.

Board members present: David Kaplan, Matt Harris, Praveen Kathpal, Hillary Orr, Ajashu
Thomas, Laura Gates, Arthur Wicks, Jesse O’Connell

Board members absent: Kursten Phelps
Board members participating remotely: Arish Gajjar from Los Angelas due to business travel.

Staff members present: Josh Baker, Beth Reveles, Edward Ryder, Kato Carter, Michael
Randolph, Raymond Mui, Stevie Mathews, Joseph Quansah, John Jones, Camila Olivares
a. Call to Order
b. Attendance
c. Welcome and Introductions
Chair David Kaplan welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 5:40pm. A quorum
was reached at that time.
2. Collaboration and Engagement
a. Public Comment
Chair Kaplan opened the meeting to public comment. As there were no speakers, public
comment was closed.
b. Chairs Report

The Board recruitment committee provided an update on their search to fill the vacant Board
seat. Jesse O’Connell stated that although they received several great applicants, they have
extended the application period to January 2, 2026, because of the requirement that the
candidate have transportation expertise.

Chair Kaplan mentioned that two City Council members: Vice Mayor Bagley and Councilman
McPike have a podcast called Council Connection. During their October podcast, DASH was
frequently mentioned in relation to how to get to various events, how to appreciate the newly
closed 200 block of King St., parking minimums, and housing. It demonstrates how DASH is part
of the fabric of the City.

Chair Kaplan reflected on organizational achievements despite a year of city-wide uncertainty
and tight funding:

Onboarding and appointments: Laura Gates as new finance board member, Jesse
O’Connell as new Vice Chair

Page 1



Operations: The Board heard from every DASH departmental head; improved board
knowledge of internal challenges and operations

Milestones: First-ever joint DASH-Council work session covering system future and
priorities
Ridership & Financials: Record ridership, balanced budget with surplus

Fleet & Facilities: Delivery of two 60-foot electric buses (Commuter Choice grant, [-395);
Broke ground on facility expansion; Won Low/No FTA grant for State of Good Repair projects

Community Engagement: Participated in World Pride celebration

Awards: From the Virginia Transit Association and the Community Transit Association of
Virginia

Service Enhancements: Three DASH routes continued to grow

Technology/Accessibility: New bus stop inventory dashboard for accessibility insights
Chair Kaplan noted staff resilience and accomplishments amid broader community hardship.

c. T&ES Report

Transportation Deputy Director Hillary Orr reviewed her written report which was shared with the
Board in advance of the meeting.

d. Other Member Reports

Matt Harris mentioned that the Human Rights Commission has been discussing conducting
virtual and hybrid meetings. He asked the Chair if the ATC Board would ever consider an all-
virtual meeting. Chair Kaplan stated that the Board prefers to hold in-person meetings and
reminded Mr. Harris that the September Board meeting was fully virtual. He stated that due to
City Hall's closure due to renovations and the number of other limited venues that periodic virtual
meetings may be a possibility.

Hillary Orr stated that the Training and Traffic Management Center with newly upgraded facilities
is available for future meetings. The Center is in the T&ES building adjacent to the DASH facility.
3. Regular Business

a. Consideration of Approval: Meeting Minutes

The Chair called for a motion to approve the November meeting minutes and asked if there were
any corrections, revisions, or amendments. A motion was made by Jesse O’Connell and
seconded by Matt Harris to approve the minutes. There was no further discussion, and the
motion carried. Laura Gates, Arthur Wicks, and Arish Gajjar abstained from the vote.

b. Review of Financials

Page 2
10



CFO Edward Ryder answered questions regarding the financial report which was provided to the
Board in advance of the meeting.

i. FY27 Impact of FY26 One-Time Line 32 Funding

Mr. Ryder and General Manager Josh Baker reviewed the summary for the Line 32 funding,
which was provided to the Board in advance of the meeting.

4. Action Items

a. Consideration of Approval: Letter Regarding Unfunded Improvements (in lieu of
supplementals)

After much discussion, it was agreed that staff would edit the letter based on the Board'’s
recommendations. The Chair and Vice Chair Jesse O’Connell would review the edited letter,
which would then be reviewed by the remaining Board members for additional input. They
agreed that the letter be finalized in time for the DASH Staff/City Manager budget meeting on
Tuesday.

b. FY27 ATC Grants Memorandum
DASH is planning to apply for grant funding for three (3) projects through the Virginia
Department of Rail and Public Transportation (DRPT)’s FY2027 MERIT grant program. The
proposed projects include: (1) DASH Public Transit Internship/Workforce Development
Program; (2) DASH State of Good Repair — Non-Revenue Vehicle Replacements; (3) DASH
State of Good Repair Non-Vehicle Facility Replacements.

c. Consideration of Approval: Workforce Development Grant Resolution

d. Consideration of Approval: Non-Revenue Vehicle SGR Grant Resolution

e. Consideration of Approval: Non-Vehicle Facility SGR Replacements Grant Resolution
Chair Kaplan called for a motion to approve all three resolutions. A motion was made by Matt
Harris and seconded by Arthur Wicks. There was no further discussion and the motion carried.
5. Staff Reports

a. ATC Board Policies Sub Committee

General Manager Josh Baker stated that he has been working with General Counsel to rework
the outdated policies dating to the organization’s founding. He asked that the Board form a two-
person committee that can work with him and General Counsel to review the proposed policies
and provide input. Matt Harris and Arish Gajjar volunteered to serve on the committee.

Page 3
11



b. ATC/City Council Work Session Follow-up Paper

Chief Infrastructure and Development Officer Raymond Mui and Mr. Baker reviewed the white
paper which was provided to the Board in advance of the meeting.

Matt Harris pointed out that one of the City Council and Board member questions was not
answered: What is the per mile cost for electricity versus diesel fuel, and is Dominion Energy
providing DASH their best rate?

Praveen Kathpal asked for clarification regarding the section that stated that the total cost to own
a BEB is similar to a diesel bus than its upfront costs indicate. Chief Infrastructure and
Development Officer Raymond Mui stated that he would speak to the consultant who assisted
with the white paper to determine what assumptions went into that assessment.

It was agreed that Staff would revise the paper and recirculate to the Board via email in advance
of submission to City Council. The finalized paper will facilitate Staff in updating the Board
Strategic Plan, which will be brought to the Board for approval. Once the Board approves the
Plan, Staff will work on the work plan for FY27, which will be brought to the Board in the Fall.

c. General Managers Report
i. Welcome to DASH Stevie Matthews - Director of Planning & Scheduling

Mr. Baker introduced the Director of Planning and Scheduling Stevie Mathews.

ii. Alliance 82 Announcement

Mr. Baker pointed out that DASH was recognized by the Alliance 82 A better Tomorrow Award.

d. Ridership Report
This report represents a 4.4% ridership decrease, attributable to the federal
government shutdown, which ran the entire month of October (10/1-10/31) and into the
first half of November.

General Manager Josh Baker reviewed the report which was shared with the Board in advance
of the meeting.

6. Executive Session
Consideration of Convening an Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing Matters
pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 ( A.6) of the Code of Virginia.

A motion was offered by Jesse O’Connell and seconded by Matt Harris to enter Executive
Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (Al) of the Code of Virginia. A vote was called, and the

Page 4
12



motion was approved unanimously.

At the conclusion of the Executive Session, a motion was offered by Jesse O’Connell and
seconded by Hillary Orr to reconvene the public meeting. A vote was called, and the motion was
approved unanimously.

A motion was offered by Jesse O’Connell and seconded by Hillary Orr to certify what was
discussed during the Executive Session was pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (Al) of the Code of
Virginia. A vote was called, and the motion was approved unanimously.

7. Adjournment

A final motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Jesse O’Connell and seconded by Matt
Harris. A vote was called, and the motion was approved unanimously.

The next regular meeting of the Alexandria Transit Company Board of Directors is scheduled for
January 14, 2026, at 5:30 pm at the Charles Beatley Central Library: 5005 Duke St.

Page 5

13



Alexandria Transit Company (DASH)
Financial Update

Financial Results Through the Month Ending November 30, 2025 (Month 5)

This report provides the financial results through the first five months of Fiscal Year 2026.

With five months of the fiscal year now complete, DASH’s year-end financial forecast continues to project a
balanced result.

Key Highlights:

o

Advertising Revenue continues to be projected above budget at year-end. While monthly
receipts can vary due to timing, the year-end projection remains favorable based on strong
performance from the current advertising vendor and ongoing revenue from the priorvendor’s
guarantee true-ups.

Maintenance Services continues to exceed budget at year-end, driven primarily by
significant repair costs for Proterra buses. November included substantial repair activity, and
these expenses remain necessary to return units to service after extended downtime and
support restoring overall fleet availability.

Operations Overtime remains above forecast through November, driven largely by
absenteeism and intermittent leave. Staff continues to monitor this trend closely and
implement strategies intended to stabilize overtime usage; favorable variances in regular
operating wages help offset this pressure, but overtime remains a key item for continued
attention.

14



ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY
Summary Income Statement for the Month Ending November 30, 2025

With Application of 1-395

Description Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan* Feb Mar Apr May Jun FY 26 Projected |FY65 Budget |Variance

Other Charter Revenue 5126 - 22,057 7,374 2,292 9,922 9,922 30,162 30,162 30,162 8,754 8,754 164,685 175,000 (10,315)
Advertising Revenue 10,000 - 42,061 12,514 19,920 20,000 98,006 - - 33,006 - - 235,507 160,000 75,507
DASH Merchandise Sales 110 51 387 668 2,354 - - - - - - - 3,570 - 3,570
Miscellaneous Revenue 11,630 - 7,979 693 - 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 55,302 60,000 (4,698)
[TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 26,866 51 72,484 21,248 24,565 34,922 112,928 35,162 35,162 68,168 13,754 13,754 459,064 395,000 64,064
City Contribution - DASH [ 3072452]  3,072452] 3,072452] 3,072452] 3,072,452 3,072,451 | 3,072,451 | 3,072,451 3,072,451 3,072,451  3,072,451] 3,072,451 36,869,420 36,869,417 | 3]
[TOTAL REVENUE | 3,099318] 3,072,503 3,144,936| 3,093,700] 3,097,017 3,107,373 | 3,185,379 | 3,107,613 | 3,107,613 3,140,619 3,086,206 | 3,086,206 | 37,328,484 | 37,264,417 | 64,067 |

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

OPERATIONS

Wages -0 478,263 1,678,679 1,036,943 1,081,586 1,003,854 1,059,265 1,625,892 1,084,794 1,097,498 1,097,767 1,098,502 1,563,240 13,906,283 14,188,232 281,949
Overtime -0 66,831 295,352 152,857 144,262 150,759 110,444 235,080 110,493 110,514 110,536 110,536 135,451 1,733,115 1,430,864 (302,251),
Fringe Benefits- O 185,484 265,773 204,181 285,153 213,310 208,440 208,440 208,440 208,440 208,440 208,440 208,440 2,612,978 2,501,275 (111,703)
Payroll Taxes - O 42,049 150,306 91,639 94,700 89,011 90,393 134,241 90,580 90,601 90,623 90,678 112,402 1,167,221 1,171,110 3,889
Retirement Contributions - 0 43,788 156,025 93,308 93,865 86,287 94,355 141,127 94,554 94,577 94,600 94,659 117,831 1,204,976 1,224,760 19,784
‘Total Operations Personnel 816,416 2,546,135 1,578,928 1,699,566 1,543,220 1,562,897 2,344,779 1,588,861 1,601,630 1,601,965 1,602,815 2,137,364 20,624,574 20,516,241 (108,333)
Operating Materials and Supplies 1,560 1,601 11,500 19,297 (22,601) 3,246 3,246 3,246 3,246 3,246 3,246 3,246 34,077 38950 4,873
Operator Training 7,327 1,830 1,970 3,450 2,799 3,208 3,208 3,208 3,208 3,208 3,208 3,208 39,835 38,500 (1,335)
Training and Travel - O 4,592 1,917 3,332 802 3,661 3,963 3,963 3,963 3,963 3,963 3,963 3,963 42,041 47,550 5,509
TOTAL OPERATIONS EXPENDITURES 829,895 2,551,483 1,595,730 1,723,115 1,527,079 1,573,313 2,355,196 1,599,277 1,612,046 1,612,382 1,613,231 2,147,781 20,740,528 20,641,241 (99,287)
MAINTENANCE

Wages - M 116,050 364,479 218,305 234,611 233,305 241,199 375,479 252,403 252,720 266,320 273,326 342,555 3,170,751 3,583,000 412,249
Overtime -M 2,951 9,230 7,767 9,534 10,919 11,379 13,129 8,651 8,651 11,323 11,345 15,414 120,293 150,700 30,407
Fringe Benefits - M 10,407 65,452 35,435 67,720 39,621 32,650 32,650 32,650 32,650 32,650 32,650 32,650 447,184 391,800 (55,384),
Payroll Taxes - M 8116 27,967 17,048 18,430 18,436 19,062 29,729 19,971 19,995 21,240 21,777 27,385 249,155 281,500 32,345
Retirement Contributions - M 7,167 21,542 14,695 15,652 15,142 16,512 31,089 20,884 20,910 22,211 22,774 28,638 237,217 294,400 57,183
Total Mai Personnel 144,691 488,670 293,250 345,948 317,422 320,802 482,075 334,559 334,926 353,744 361,872 446,641 4,224,600 4,701,400 476,800
Fuel & Lubricants 204,688 165,014 173,155 166,272 145,870 135,837 168,147 168,147 168,147 190,995 190,995 190,995 2,068,261 2,291,938 223,677
Repair Parts & Supplies 143,698 170,648 154,761 175,127 53,588 138,049 138,049 138,049 138,049 138,049 138,049 138,049 1,664,165 1,656,586 (7,579)
Maintenance Services 47,046 34,871 76,671 120,313 378,570 50,526 52,068 51,759 28,425 28,425 28,425 28,425 925,524 341,100 (584,424),
Training and Travel -M 1,164 50 1,403 7,733 1,886 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 23,903 20,000 (3,903)
TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES 541,287 859,254 699,241 815,393 897,335 646,880 842,006 694,180 671,213 712,879 721,008 805,777 8,906,452 9,011,024 104,572

ADMINISTRATION

Wages - A 99,204 341,470 218,777 220,506 208,366 215,883 349,500 233,619 234,721 236,457 236,457 318,555 2,913,514 3,033,300 119,786
Fringe Benefits - A 21,208 56,148 37,902 60,204 (2,169) 26,824 26,824 26,824 26,824 26,824 26,824 37,902 372,139 321,890 (50,249)
Payroll Taxes - A 7,421 25,560 16,369 16,488 15,334 17,806 26,571 17,879 17,962 18,092 18,092 24,369 221,944 231,800 9,856
Retirement Contributions - A 8,325 25,656 16,708 18,299 16,925 16,515 27,960 18,690 18,778 18,917 18,917 23,980 229,668 243,000 13,332
Facilities Maintenance (Personnel) 22,859 74,594 43,556 45,282 39,646 17,271 55,025 40,084 40,084 40,084 40,084 47,716 506,286 508,700 2,414

[Total Administrative Personnel 159,017 523,428 333,311 360,778 278,102 294,299 485,880 337,096 338,369 340,374 340,374 452,523 4,243,551 4,338,690 95,139
Facilities Maintenance (Non-Personnel) 19,949 46,025 25,229 32,796 41,225 23,917 23,917 23,917 23,917 23,917 23,917 23,917 332,640 287,000 (45,640)
Insurance 81,422 81,422 81,422 81,942 87,812 81,042 81,042 81,042 81,042 81,042 81,942 81,042 987,614 895,635 (91,979)
Professional Services 172,855 9,659 112,909 68,752 157,466 81,308 81,308 81,308 81,308 81,308 81,308 81,308 1,090,800 975,700 (115,100)
Utilities 29,972 29,520 28,867 26,801 35,228 28,396 28,396 28,396 28,396 28,396 39,258 39,258 370,883 471,094 100,211
Telecommunications 9,393 9,573 9,916 9,602 9,191 9,667 9,667 9,667 9,667 9,667 9,667 9,667 115,341 116,000 659
Printing & Advertising 4,817 14,833 963 10,260 (5,389) 4,208 4,208 4,208 4,208 4,208 4,208 3,208 53,941 50,500 (3,441)
Training, Travel, Events 11,785 9,708 4,217 6,666 5,107 5,179 5,179 5,179 5,179 5,179 4,179 3,250 70,808 62,150 (8,658)
Office Equipment and Supplies 21,441 4,848 24,571 10,216 7,484 10,533 10,533 10,533 10,533 10,533 10,533 10,533 142,294 126,400 (15,894)
Employee Recognition - 4,450 2,136 8,514 10,008 4,957 4,957 4,957 4,957 4,957 4,957 4,633 59,483 59,483 -
Dues and Subscriptions 2,334 1,668 1,399 1,511 1,977 2,042 2,042 2,042 2,042 2,042 2,042 2,042 23,180 24,500 1,320
Grant Local Match - - - - 3,516 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 3,984 15,000 15,000 -
TOTAL ADMIN EXPENDITURES 512,984 735,134 624,939 617,838 631,727 547,698 739,279 590,495 591,768 593,773 603,635 716,264 7,505,535 7,422,152 (83,383)

11,077

CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-CIP)

Computer and Office Equipment - - 17,009 - - - - - - - - - 17,009 - (17,009)
Maintenance Equipment 4,324 - - - - - - - - - - 42,069 46,393 60,000 13,607
Other Equipment Investments 3,608 - - - - 97,500 - - - - - 15,491 116,599 130,000 13,401

[TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-CIP) 7,932 - 17,009 - - 97,500 - - - - - 57,560 180,000 190,000 10,000

[TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES | 1,892,097] 4145871 2,936,919] 3,156346] 3,056,141 ] 2,865,391 | 3,936,480 | 2,883,953 | 2,875,028 2,919,034  2,937,874] 3,727,382 37,332,516 | 37,264,417 ] (68,099)]

|NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) [ 1,207,221]  (1,073,367)]  208,017] (62,646)] 40,876 | 241,982 | (751,101)] 223,660 | 232,585 | 221,585 | 148,332 | (641,176)] (4,032)] (o) (4,031)]




ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY
Summary Income Statement for the Month Ending November 30, 2025

Budget vs Actual
L . . Fv26 Yeal: End FY 26 Budget Variance

Description Nov Actuals |Nov Budget |Variance YTD Actuals YTD Forecast [Variance Projection

Other Charter Revenue 2,292 9,922 (7,630) 36,848 47,163 (10,315) 164,685 175,000 (10,315)
Advertising Revenue 19,920 40,000 (20,080) 84,495 80,000 4,495 235,507 160,000 75,507
DASH Merchandise Sales 2,354 - 2,354 3,570 - 3,570 3,570 - 3,570
Miscellaneous Revenue - 5,000 (5,000) 20,302 25,000 (4,698) 55,302 60,000 (4,698)
[TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 24,565 54,9227 (30,357) 145,215 152,163 (6,948) 459,064 395,000 64,064
City Contribution - DASH 3,072,452 3,072,451 1| 15362260 15,362,257 3 36,869,420 36,869,417 3
[TOTAL REVENUE [ 3,097,017 3,127,373] (30,356)] 15,507,475 15,514,420 | (6,945) 37,328,484 | 37,264,417 | 64,067
OPERATING EXPENDITURES

OPERATIONS

Wages -0 1,003,854 1,094,699 90,845 5,279,326 5,713,305 433,979 13,906,283 14,188,232 281,949
Overtime -0 150,759 110,435 (40,325) 810,060 578,899 (231,162) 1,733,115 1,430,864 (302,251),
Fringe Benefits - O 213,310 208,440 (4,870) 1,153,901 1,042,198 (111,703) 2,612,978 2,501,275 (111,703),
Payroll Taxes - O 89,011 90,385 1,374 467,704 471,593 3,889 1,167,221 1,171,110 3,889
Retirement Contributions - O 86,287 94,347 8,060 473,273 493,056 19,784 1,204,976 1,224,760 19,784
Total Operations Personnel | 1,543,220 1,598,305 55,085 8,184,264 8,299,052 114,787 20,624,574 20,516,241 (108,333))
Operating Materials and Supplies (22,601) 3,246 25,847 11,356 16,229 4,873 34,077 38,950 4,873
Operator Training 2,799 3,208 409 17,377 16,042 (1,335) 39,835 38,500 (1,335)
Training and Travel - O 3,661 3,963 302 14,304 19,813 5,509 42,041 47,550 5,509
TOTAL OPERATIONS EXPENDITURES [ 1,527,079] 1,608,722 81,643 8,227,301 8,351,135 | 123,833 20,740,528 20,641,241 | (99,287)
MAINTENANCE

Wages - M 233,305 270,480 37,175 1,166,749 1,441,931 275,182 3,170,751 3,583,000 412,249
Overtime - M 10,919 11,162 244 40,401 59,605 19,203 120,293 150,700 30,407
Fringe Benefits - M 39,621 32,650 (6,971) 218,634 163,250 (55,384) 447,184 391,800 (55,384)
Payroll Taxes - M 18,436 21,246 2,810 89,997 113,229 23,232 249,155 281,500 32,345
Retirement Contributions - M 15,142 22,173 7,031 74,199 118,333 44,134 237,217 294,400 57,183
|Tota| i e Personnel 317,422 357,712 40,289 1,589,980 1,896,347 306,367 4,224,600 4,701,400 476,800
Fuel & Lubricants 145,870 190,995 45,125 854,999 954,974 99,976 2,068,261 2,291,938 223,677
Repair Parts & Supplies 53,588 138,049 84,461 697,823 690,244 (7,579) 1,664,165 1,656,586 (7,579)
Maintenance Services 378,570 28,425 (350,145) 657,471 142,125 (515,346) 925,524 341,100 (584,424),
Training and Travel - M 1,886 1,667 (219) 12,236 8,333 (3,903) 23,903 20,000 (3,903)
TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES 897,335 716,847 | (180,488), 3,812,509 3,692,024 | (120,485), 8,906,452 9,011,024 l 104,572
ADMINISTRATION

Wages - A 208,366 232,643 24,277 1,088,322 1,214,348 126,026 2,913,514 3,033,300 119,786
Fringe Benefits - A (2,169) 26,824 28,993 173,293 134,121 (39,172) 372,139 321,890 (50,249)
Payroll Taxes - A 15,334 17,806 2,472 81,172 92,866 11,694 221,944 231,800 9,856
Retirement Contributions - A 16,925 18,611 1,687 85,912 97,148 11,236 229,668 243,000 13,332
Facilities Maintenance (Personnel) 39,646 39,869 223 225,937 205,753 (20,184) 506,286 508,700 2,414
Total Administrative Personnel I 278,102 335,753 | 57,652 1,654,636 1,744,236 | 89,599 4,243,551 4,338,690 ‘ 95,139
Facilities Maintenance (Non-Personnel) 41,225 23,917 (17,309) 165,223 119,583 (45,640) 332,640 287,000 (45,640)
Insurance 87,812 74,636 (13,176) 414,020 373,181 (40,839) 987,614 895,635 (91,979)
Professional Services 157,466 81,308 (76,158) 521,641 406,542 (115,100) 1,090,800 975,700 (115,100),
Utilities 35,228 39,258 4,030 150,388 196,289 45,901 370,883 471,094 100,211
Telecommunications 9,191 9,667 476 47,674 48,333 659 115,341 116,000 659
Printing & Advertising (5,389) 4,208 9,598 25,483 21,042 (4,441) 53,941 50,500 (3,441)
Training, Travel, Events 5,107 5,179 72 37,483 25,896 (11,587) 70,808 62,150 (8,658)
Office Equipment and Supplies 7,484 10,533 3,049 68,561 52,667 (15,894) 142,294 126,400 (15,894)
Employee Recognition 10,008 4,957 (5,051) 25,109 24,785 (324) 59,483 59,483 -
Dues and Subscriptions 1,977 2,042 65 8,889 10,208 1,320 23,180 24,500 1,320
Grant Local Match 3,516 1,250 (2,266) 3,516 6,250 2,734 15,000 15,000 -
TOTAL ADMIN EXPENDITURES 631,727 592,709 | (39,018) 3,122,622 3,029,011 | (93,611) 7,505,535 7,422,152 | (83,383)
CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-CIP)

Computer and Office Equipment - - - 17,009 - (17,009) 17,009 - (17,009)
Maintenance Equipment - - - 4,324 - (4,324) 46,393 60,000 13,607
Other Equipment Investments - - - 3,608 - (3,608) 116,599 130,000 13,401
[TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-CIP) [ - - - 24,940 | - (24,940) 180,000 | 190,000 | 10,000
[TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES [ 3056141 2918277] (137,864) 15,187,373] 15,072,170 ] (115,203) 37,332,516 | 37,264,417 | (68,099)
[NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) [ 40,876 | 209,096 [ (168,220 320,102 | 442249 (122,148 (4,032)] (o) (4,031)

16



REVENUES:

Charter Revenue
Advertising Revenue
DASH Merchandise Sales
Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

City Contribution - DASH
Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Operations
Maintenance
Administration
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Net Surplus (Deficit)

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY
Summary Income Statement for the Month Ending November 30, 2025

FY26 Year End

Actual YTD  Budget YTD Variance Projection FY 26 Budget Variance
36,848 47,163 (10,315) 164,685 175,000 (10,315)
84,495 80,000 4,495 235,507 160,000 75,507

3,570 - 3,570 3,570 - 3,570
20,302 25,000 (4,698) 55,302 60,000 (4,698)
145,215 152,163 (6,948) 459,064 395,000 64,064
15,362,260 15,362,257 3 36,869,420 36,869,417 3
15,507,475 15,514,420 (6,945) 37,328,484 37,264,417 64,067
8,227,301 8,351,135 123,833 20,740,528 20,641,241 (99,287)
3,812,509 3,692,024 (120,485) 8,906,452 9,011,024 104,572
3,122,622 3,029,011 (93,611) 7,505,535 7,422,152 (83,383)
24,940 - (24,940) 180,000 190,000 10,000
15,187,373 15,072,170 (115,203) 37,332,516 37,264,417 (68,099)
L4
320,102 442,249 (122,148) (4,032) (0) (4,031)

17



ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY
Balance Sheet as of November 30, 2025

ASSETS

Cash - City of Alexandria Pooled
Cash - Payroll Account

Due from Other Governments
Receivables

Prepaid Expenditures

Parts and Supplies Inventory
Capital Assets

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Payroll Liabilities
Accrued Vacation
Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

(6,670,256)
172,827
4,847,244
615,762
1,307,253
76,804,637
(46,615,950)

30,461,517

589,711
48,075
1,502,318

2,140,104

30,188,687
(1,867,274)

28,321,413

30,461,517

18



Total Monthly Boardings

600,000

500,000

400,000

300,000

200,000

100,000

DASH Monthly Ridership

July August September October November December January February March April June

19



FLEET MAINTENANCE

Stephanie Salzone
Chief Operating Officer

AL

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT




COSTS & BUDGET

"DASH"

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT

21



UTILIZATION BY VEHICLE TYPE

Electric

B Fleet Composition
B % of Miles

Diesel/Electric Hybrid

Diesel

A

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 4

22



RELIABILITY BY VEHICLE TYPE

Electric 535; 52.87% 477; 47.13%

Diesel/Electric Hybrid 993; 23.46% 3239; 76.54% B Downtime Hours
B Uptime Hours

Diesel 816; 19.71% 3324; 80.29%

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT
23



SUCCESSES

Low workplace injury

Increased employee morale

Declining deadline

AL

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT




CHALLENGES

Recruitment for mechanics

Data collection

Quality of parts

AL

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT




AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

Focus on Quality Build Resiliency Fulfill Training
Needs

Improve Data

Integrity

Maintenance

“Best Part at the « Contingency Standardized and
Best Price” fleet Increased
Prioritize the * Diversify fleet Training
Customer Low/No grant
Experience

analyst
Al
Predictive

maintenance and

costs




